ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
SENATE TRANSPORTATI ON COVMM TTEE
May 6, 2001
9:12 a. m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or John Cowdery, Chair
Senator Jerry Ward, Vice Chair
Senat or Robi n Tayl or

Senator Gary W/ ken

Senator Kim El ton

VEMBERS ABSENT
None
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 260(FIN) am

"An Act requiring the owners or operators of certain comerci al
passenger vessels operating in the marine waters of the state to
register with the Departnent of Environnmental Conservation;
establishing information-gathering, record keeping, and reporting
requirenments relating to the vessels' graywater, sewage, hazardous
subst ances, hazardous wastes, solid wastes, and other pollutants;
establishing certain sanpling, testing, reporting, and record-
keeping requirenents as terns and conditions of permtting
di scharges from the vessels; authorizing the Departnent of
Envi ronnental Conservation to provide for independent verification
of compliance by the vessels, and to nonitor and supervise
di scharges fromthe vessels; prohibiting the discharge of untreated
sewage fromthe vessels; placing limts on discharges of treated
sewage and graywater fromthe vessels; providing that there is no
audit report privilege for conplying wwth a requirenent that the
owner or operator of a conmercial passenger vessel nust report
di scharges of sewage or graywater that violate |aws; establishing a
fee, ranging from$.70 - $1.75 per berth, with a nmaxi nrum of $3, 750
per voyage, on commrerci al passenger vessels that are not operated
by the state for each voyage during which the vessels operate in
the marine waters of the state based on the overni ght accomodati on
capacity of the vessels determned with reference to the nunber of
| ower berths; providing for a fee for vessels operated by the state
to be determined by an agreenent between the comm ssioner of
envi ronnent al conservation and the comm ssioner of transportation
and public facilities; authorizing the Departnent of Environnental
Conservation to research, nonitor, and study discharges and
rel eases from comrerci al passenger vessels, including the opacity
of air emssions from the vessels; establishing penalties for

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -1- May 6, 2001



failure to conmply with certain laws relating to the vessels;
authorizing the Departnent of Environnental Conservation to
encourage and recogni ze superior environnental protection efforts
related to commercial passenger vessels; authorizing the Departnent
of Environnental Conservation to adopt regulations to inplenent
laws relating to commercial passenger vessels and directing the
departnent to use negotiated regulation procedures, when
appropriate, to devel op the regul ations; establishing a comerci al
passenger vessel coastal protection fund; requiring a report from
the Departnment of Environnental Conservation concerning natters
relating to the vessels; and providing for an effective date."

HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
HB 260 - No previous Senate comm ttee action.
W TNESS REG STER

M . Dal e Anderson

Aide to the House Finance Conmittee

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified for the sponsor of HB 260.

M. Tom Dow

North West Cruise Ship Association

1550- 555 West Hastings Street

Vancouver BC VON 1Y0 Canada

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SCS CSHB 260( TRA)

Ms. Susan Burke

Gross and Burke

424 North Franklin St.

Juneau, AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ained the tonnage clause of the U S
Constitution.

M. M ke Conway, Director

Di vision of Statew de Public Service

Departnent of Environnental Conservation

410 WI Il oughby Ave. Ste. 105

Juneau, AK 99801-1795

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Gave an overvi ew of SCS CSHB 260( TRA).

Randy Ray, President

U.S. Cruiseship Association
P. 0. Box 979

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 2- May 6, 2001



Mercer |sland, WA 98040
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SCS CSHB 260(TRA) wth proposed
anendnent s.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-18, SIDE A
Number 001

CHAI RVAN JOHN COADERY call ed the Senate Transportation Conmittee
neeting to order at 9:12 a.m Senators W] ken, Ward and Cowdery
were present.

#HB 260
HB 260- COVMER. PASSENGER VESSEL REGULATI ON & FEES

CHAl RVAN CONDERY announced that a proposed conmittee substitute was
before the commttee.

SENATOR WARD noved to adopt SCS CSHB 260(TRA), Version O, as the
wor ki ng docunment of the comm ttee and asked for unani nous consent.
There being no objection, the notion carried.

CHAI RMAN CONDERY i nfornmed conm ttee nenbers of the changes made to
CSHB 260( FI N) am

1. On page 6, line 26, the word "effluent” was added after the
word "narrative,” and on page 6, line 27, the phrase "di scharged
from a comercial passenger vessel"” was inserted after the word
"graywater."

That change was nade to clarify that the intent of the bill is not
to give DEC the authority to adopt standards for treated sewage and
graywat er while onboard the vessels. The standards apply only to
treated sewage and graywater that is discharged from vessels as
ef fl uent. This amendnent also clarifies that DEC s regul atory
authority only extends to comrerci al passenger vessels.

2. On page 7, Sec. 46.03.465(b), subparagraph (2) was del eted
because its provisions are already covered in nore specific
| anguage i n subparagraph (1). On page 8, line 3, a typographical
error was corrected - the word "discharge®" was changed to
"di scharges. "

3. On page 8, line 26, subsection (f) was added to Sec. 46.03. 465
to prevent nultiple reporting requirenments of the sane information
to DEC, federal agencies and other states, as |ong as DEC receives
that information. Only the information required under subsections

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 3- May 6, 2001



(b) and (d) is covered in subsection (f). The information required
to be reported to DEC under subsection (a) should be included as
wel | .

4. On page 9, line 31, and on page 10, lines 1 and 3, changes were
made to Sec. 46.03.475(c)(1) and (2). Subparagraph (1) does not
requi re vessel owners or operators to report to DEC a di sposal or
of f| oadi ng of nonhazardous solid waste other than sewage in the
marine waters of the state, including all of the waters of the
Al exander Archipelago, if the disposal or offloading of that type
of material is not required to be reported under any other state or
federal law.  Subparagraph (2) covered both the disposal and the
of fl oadi ng of hazardous waste or hazardous substances but that
di sposal is covered under other state and federal |aws so reference
to it in subparagraph (2) is unnecessary.

5. On page 11, line 20, a typographical error was corrected by
capitalizing "AS."

SENATOR ELTON noted t he anendnents do not track with the page and
|l i ne nunbers in Version O

CHAl RMAN CONDERY clarified that he was referring to the line and
page nunbers in the House version that were renoved in the Senate
Transportation Commttee substitute. He informed conmttee nenbers
that Version O was worked out wth DEC. He then asked for an
expl anation of the House Finance Commttee version of the bill

Nunmber 502

MR. DALE ANDERSON, committee aide to the House Finance Conmttee,
sponsor of HB 260, made the foll ow ng statenent.

Today, M. Chairman, you' ve been asked and given the
opportunity to consider a bill that takes a conprehensive
approach to establish Al aska state standards based on
scientific data relating to «cruiseship wastewater
di scharges in the state of Al aska. This far-reaching
| egislation will nmake Al aska the very first state in the
nation to adopt requirements that build upon the | andmark
| egi slation recently enacted into | aw through the efforts
of Senator Mirkowski . This bill wll prohibit the
di scharge of untreated sewage and prohibit the discharge
of treated sewage that does not neet very strict
standards and no other state does that. It also sets the
very first graywater discharge standards in not just the
United States but the entire world. Beginning in 2003,
no cruiseships will be able to discharge graywater in

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -4- May 6, 2001



Al askan waters that does not neet rigorous standards
established in HB 260. It incorporates federally
mandated U.S. Coast Guard inspections and nonitoring of
crui seshi ps, supplenents the federal program with a
Separate state testing program wthout duplicating
efforts and establishes strict civil and crimnal
penalties in Alaska for violations.

This legislation al so neets very inportant criteria that
Al askans have said was critical for this type of
environmental protection |egislation. It regul ates
wast ewat er discharges, it provides for nonitoring and
research, it provides for independent verification of the
integrity of the sanpling by the cruise ship industry.
It recognizes superior performance and it collects fees
fromthe vessels to pay for the cost of this regulation.

Number 630

SENATOR WARD asked if this bill will apply to the A aska Marine
H ghway System (AVHS).

MR. ANDERSON said it does not.

SENATOR WARD asked why the House deci ded to exclude the AVHS from
pol l ution regul ation.

MR ANDERSON said that issue was discussed in the House. The House
is very concerned that the AWHS is not included in this
| egi sl ati on.

SENATOR WARD asked why the AVHS was excl uded.

MR. ANDERSON said at this juncture, the House decided that the
primary focus is on the cruise ship industry.

SENATOR WARD asked if any discussion took place about not hol ding
the AMHS to the sanme non-pollution standards as the cruise ships.

CHAI RMAN CONDERY suggest ed asking that question of a state agency
official.

MR. ANDERSON fi ni shed readi ng his statenent.

Qur oceans and watersheds are very inportant to Al aska's
econony, culture and environnment and well being and this

bill protects the quality of those waters by inplenmenting
critical regulations of the cruise ship industry at the
state level. The bill is reasonable, appropriate, and

very necessary and it sinply requires the cruise industry

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 5- May 6, 2001



nmeet the standards to protect Al aska's environnent based

on scientific data. This legislation is not only
conprehensive, it is clear in what the state demands of
the cruise ship industry. It gives Alaskans the
assurance that our waters will be protected and the
cruise ship industry will be managed responsibly. This
bill protects our state waters and protects the many

j obs, especially here in Southeast Al aska, dependant on
this industry. Thank you.

Number 786

SENATOR WARD noted that according to a |ocal newspaper, the City
and Borough of Juneau was dunping waste into the water and a city
enpl oyee was fired. He asked M. Anderson if he | ooked into that
type of pollution.

MR. ANDERSON said the focus of this bill is on the cruise ship
i ndustry.

SENATOR WARD asked if the House discussed discharges from
conmuni ties.

MR. ANDERSON said that discussions about shore side disposal
st andards took pl ace.

SENATOR WARD asked what the result of those di scussions were.

MR ANDERSON replied that one finding fromthat discussion was that
the standards that wll be enforced for the cruise ships are
stricter than those for many shore side facilities.

SENATOR WARD asked if the debate in the House was about treating
the pollution standards for on shore facilities differently than
those for the cruise ships.

MR. ANDERSON answered that this bill sets a standard that has not
been set before on any shipping industry.

SENATOR WARD asked if that differs frompollution fromcities.

MR. ANDERSON said it is an additional standard.

CHAI RVAN COWDERY noted that he has introduced a bill related to
surge and graywater that can be heard in commttee at a |ater date.
He asked to hear fromrepresentatives of the cruise ship industry.
Nunmber 910

MR. TOM DOW representing the Northwest Cruise Ship Association

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 6- May 6, 2001



(NWCA), which consists of the nine nmenber lines that bring |arge
vessel s to Al aska, stated strong support for SCS CSHB 260( TRA) and
urged the Senate to enact that |egislation wthout adding any
taxes. The NWCA believes that the technical corrections made in
the latest version cleaned up sone mnor |anguage errors in the
bill. He offered to answer questions.

MS. SUSAN BURKE, a Juneau attorney, informed the conmttee she is
representing the NWCA in connection with this |egislation.

CHAI RVAN COWDERY commented that the cruise ships benefit the
comunities they stop in. He asked if this bill wll have any
effect on the tinme the ships are able to spend in port.

MR DOW said the NWCA believes that this bill, as currently
witten, will not disrupt the current itineraries so it wll have
no inpact on port tine. The NWCA is not just looking at the
provisions of the bill that apply right now, it is |ooking at what
will apply two years from now when the vessels wi |l have advanced
technology in place. At that tinme, schedule disruptions wll
becone | ess of an issue. The NWCA has worked very closely with the
Adm nistration on this legislation and can live with it.

MS5. BURKE asked to address M. Dow s statenent about adding a tax
to SCS CSHB 260(TRA). She pointed out that any tine a state or
municipality wants to extract noney from a busi ness that operates
in nmore than one taxing jurisdiction, one nmust | ook at the comerce
clause of the U S. Constitution. According to that clause, states
cannot discrimnate against interstate comerce in ternms of
taxation. However, when dealing with vessels, another provision of
the U S. Constitution conmes into play: the tonnage clause. The
tonnage cl ause prohibits a state from"laying any duty of tonnage
on a vessel wthout the consent of Congress.” Courts have
interpreted that provision to include all taxes and duties
regardl ess of their nane or formand, even though not neasured by
the actual weight of the vessel, which operate to i npose a charge
for the privilege of entering, trading in, or lying in port.

SENATOR W LKEN stated that Ms. Burke's topic is not germane to the
commttee's discussion since the commttee is not tal king about a
t ax.

M5. BURKE informed the Chairman that she believes the passenger fee
provision in the bill could raise questions under the tonnage
cl ause.

CHAl RMAN CONDERY said he intended to ask Ms. Burke to address the
commi ttee.

M5. BURKE conti nued. She explained that the tonnage clause
essentially says that user fees can be inposed on vessels for

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -7- May 6, 2001



marine pilots, wharf fees, dock fees, and fees for inpacts that are
directly related to the presence of the vessel in the taxing
jurisdiction. The tonnage clause does not allow a state or
municipality to inpose a tax on vessels and use the revenues for
anything it wants to, for exanple education, that is not directly
related to the inpact. She pointed out that a provision on page
10, line 13, of Version O [Sec. 46.03.482(c)], provides that the
| egi sl ature may nmake appropriations fromthe fund into which these

passenger fees will be going for the purpose of preparing reports
to the legislature required by the bill and to carry out the
adm nistrative costs and activities for the testing, sanpling,
regulating and nonitoring that DEC wll be doing under the

provisions of this bill.

M5. BURKE said, in her opinion, the fact that Sec. 46.03.482(c)
limts the use of the funds to things that are directly related to
the cruise ship activities within the state will pass nuster under
t he tonnage cl ause. Had that provision been nore expansive, it
woul d have rai sed serious problens under the tonnage cl ause.

Number 1289

SENATOR ELTON asked M. Dow if the environnental provisions of SCS
CSHB 260(TRA) will be applied in the same nmanner to vessels of the
ANVHS.

MR DOW said it is his understanding they wll. The confusion
arises fromthe fact that there have been several versions of this
bill and that discussion has gone back and forth on the AVHS.

M5. BURKE said it is her understanding that the AVHS will be
subject to the discharge standards in this bill. She does not
believe the AMHS is subject to the passenger fee provision.

SENATOR ELTON said it is his understanding that because of the

di fferent ways passengers are carried, there will be a negotiated
fee.

CHAI RVAN CONDERY suggested tal king to DEC about that issue.

MR. DOW added that the NWCA has no objection to the departnents
wor ki ng that out.

SENATOR WARD asked if the fee revenue could be used for port
i nprovenents under the tonnage clause in communities where cruise
shi ps dock.

M5. BURKE said she believes it could.

SENATOR WARD asked if the state could supplant sonme of the noney it
will need for the AWHS if that revenue is wused for port

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 8- May 6, 2001



i mprovenents.

SENATOR ELTON said his guess is that any expenditure on a ferry
facility that is not also a cruise ship facility mght raise a
| egal questi on.

SENATOR WARD said he was referring to dock facilities that could be
i nproved and transferred to the comrunities.

MR. DOWsaid he does not believe there is a single instance where
the large vessels are using the sanme dock facilities as the AVHS.
That may be true of the smaller vessels.

CHAI RVAN COWDERY noted that Senator Taylor joined the committee.
He expl ained Ms. Burke cautioned the commttee that putting a tax
provision into the bill mght create a constitutional problem

SENATOR TAYLOR noted that he continues to oppose any taxation at
this point. He asked if there mght be a constitutional problemif
fees are applied to other entities that m ght need repair.

M5. BURKE expl ained that it woul d be acceptabl e under the tonnage
clause if the facilities are used by the entities that are paying
the fees. |If the facility is not used by the vessels and they get
absolutely no benefit fromit, and it has nothing to do with any
i npacts of the vessels' presence in the state - environmentally, in
this particular issue, she believes there would be a problem

SENATOR TAYLOR noted the legislature has never been allowed to
create a dedicated fund because that violates the Al aska
Constitution. He pointed out he has never heard the argunent before
that there nust be a nexus in the application of the funds between
the i npact generated and the utilization of the funds. He said if
that were the case, the state would not be able to use any of its
oil inconme on anything except the pipeline.

Nunmber 1576

M5. BURKE clarified that the tonnage clause of the U S
Constitution focuses only on vessels, which is why it creates the
probl em here. It has been interpreted expansively as to what
constitutes a tax measured by tonnage.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked about interstate commerce.

M5. BURKE said that is another issue entirely.

CHAI RMVAN COWDERY asked a representative of the Departnent of
Envi ronmental Conservation (DEC) to cone forward.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 9- May 6, 2001



MR. M KE CONWAY, Director of the State Public Service Division of
DEC, gave the followng overview of SCS CSHB 260(TRA). Thi s
| egislation is the culmnation of two years of work done by state
and federal agencies, the cruise ship industry, and nenbers of the
public to answer questions about the effect of the cruise ship
operations on the environnent in Al aska. The effort began as the
result of stories about cruise ship violations that occurred in the
early to md 1990s on the m xi ng of hazardous waste within cruise
shi p di scharges. QO her air em ssion violations occurred in the
| ater part of the 1990s. Conmm ssioner Brown was perpl exed by the
fact that this industry is not under the purview of DEC and about
how to get a handle on cruise ship operations. She called the
i ndustry, the U S. Coast Guard and the Environnmental Protection
Agency (EPA) together to begin a discussion.

SENATOR WARD conmment ed that he bel i eves Conm ssioner Brown's heart
is in the right place but asked why the Adm nistration has deci ded
to put mninmum guidelines on the cruise ship industry for waste
di scharge but not hold the AVHS or conmunities in Alaska to the
same standard.

MR CONVAY clarified the AWHS nust conply wth the sane
requirenents as the cruise ship industry. The only exception is
that the fee will be negotiated between the conm ssioners of DEC
and DOTPF because of the year-round operations of the AVHS but the
standards are exactly the sane.

SENATOR WARD asked if the AVHS neets those standards today.

MR. CONVWAY replied the AVHS is in the sane situation as the cruise
ship industry - sone vessels neet the standards but sonme don't.
They use the sane marine sanitation devices (MsSDs), which are
devi ces used to treat sewage.

SENATOR WARD asked if the AMHS neets the standards in SCS CSHB
260( TRA) today.

MR CONWAY said the AVHS does not neet themall.

SENATOR WARD noted that this commttee heard testinony from the
AMHS that it nmet all of the standards.

MR. CONWAY said according to this version of the bill, the answer
is no, but according to state and federal |aw, the AVHS does neet
t he standards.

SENATOR WARD asserted that the AVMHS is not in conpliance with this
draft.

MR CONWAY said that is correct.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -10- May 6, 2001



Number 1834

SENATOR WARD asked why the conmmunities that are polluting Al askan
waters are not included in this bill

MR CONVAY said the sinple answer is that communities get discharge
permts, the cruise ships do not. He explained that communities
have to neet the state water quality standards regarding
di schar ges. Communities go through a 12 to 18 nonth permitting
process where they take sanples of the discharges. A risk analysis
and assessnent of |ocal resources is done, because communities do
not nmove |ike ships do. An assessnment of resources in the area
that could come into contact with the discharge is taken and
cal cul ations are done to determ ne whether the discharge will have
any chronic or acute effect on the m xing zone - the point at which
t he di scharge cones out of the pipe. The m xing zone nust neet the
state water quality standards.

SENATOR WARD asked if, because the Gty and Borough of Juneau (CBJ)
is stationary, it has a different dunping standard and whet her the
faster a ship noves, the nore it can dunp.

MR. CONWAY explained that the tides and currents are taken into
consideration for shore side facilities. Studies are being done
right now on ship discharges and this bill allows that, at sone
point, the size and speed of the ship, the depth and vol unme of the
di scharge, and the currents and hull friction can be considered in
the effect of the mxing. That study should determ ne what is in
the water 100 feet away fromthe ship and will provide for a very
simlar process to what is used on the shore side facilities.

SENATOR WARD asked if DEC does not feel that shore side facility
di scharges need to be addressed now.

MR. CONWAY said DEC of fered the cruise ship industry the option of
using the sanme process that is used for shore side facilities but
the option in the bill was preferable.

SENATOR WARD asked if DECis satisfied with the pollution | evel at
shore side facilities now.

MR CONWAY said it is.

CHAI RVAN CONDERY asked if the cruise ship discharge is tested as it
cones out of the vessel.

MR. CONWAY said that is correct.
CHAI RMVAN CONDERY asked if the discharge fromshore side facilities

is tested offshore, in the mxing zone and, if so, why the testing
is not equival ent.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -11- May 6, 2001



MR. CONWAY answered that discharge is actually tested at the plant
itself. A shore side treatnent plant has an area surrounding it
t hat does not neet the water quality standards.

CHAI RVAN CONDERY asked why.
MR. CONWAY replied because no technology is available to do that.

CHAl RMAN CONDERY said he is wondering why discharge from a shore
side facility is tested one quarter mle from the plant while
di scharge fromships is tested onboard.

MR. CONWAY replied:

The testing is actually done at the plant - at the
di scharge on the shore side as well. Wat they' ve done
is they've gone through the studies to calculate if -
|l et's say you have a shellfish bed over here to the side
that you want to protect, hypothetically. You want to
make sure that the water here, which exceeds the water
quality standards, does not affect your shellfish bed.
So what they do is they require treatnent on the shore
side to be able to nake sure that the area that exceeds
those standards is |imted and they back cal cul ate that
to what actually conmes out of the pipe. So what they are
neasuring is what is comng out of the pipe, sane as what
they will neasure wth the ship. The only thing that we
don't know now with the ship is what is this - and that's
provided for. Everybody acknow edges that needs to be
studi ed before you go and say - there's a provision, for
instance, in the Mirkowski |egislation that sensitive
areas can be designated and sensitive areas neans that
you can't discharge at all. Wll, sanme sort of principle
needs to apply. If there's sonme sort of paraneter or
constituent that's in that pollution, you don't want it
to get to a subsistence bed or shellfish bed where peopl e
go, so you have to go through to do that cal cul ati on and
justify that. W don't know what that is now and so in
the discussions wth the industry, the process that you
see outlined here is sonething that, in the interim
until that's discovered, it's an approach that we've
agreed to go with. At some point in the future, provided
for in this, if we find out that 100 feet away from a
ship there is nothing to be concerned about, right now
there's a mle restriction and a six knot restriction on
punping, it could be that you could lift that mle
restriction once you had it in place.

Number 2120

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -12- May 6, 2001



SENATOR TAYLCOR asked if the shore side effluent is neasured in the
pl ant and calculated to the outfall and whether this |egislation
wll require the sane standard to be appli ed.

MR, CONWAY said it will be conparable. The piping on a shipis a
bit different so the black water, which is the treated sewage
water, wll be neasured. It is a little bit nore difficult to
neasure at the "end of pipe" because ships would be required to put
in nore equi pnent and nodifications that are not conpatible with
the integrity of the vessel.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if DEC is able to discern, through
mat hemat i cal and chem cal cal cul ati ons, whether the quality of the
effluent is lower or higher than the effluent comng out from a
pi pe on the side of a boat and whether this bill provides for a
hi gher standard than what communities are expected to neet.

MR. CONWAY said the standard is different for different treatnent
pl ants but the equivalency is at the edge of the m xing zone. The
crui se ship industry, not having a m xing zone, has a set standard.

An early draft of the bill had paranmeters of 200 fecal coliform per
100 mlliliters and 100 total suspended solids. The governor's
bill did not contain those nunbers. Those nunbers would be the

standard required for every cruise ship but the standard for every
shore side treatnent plant is not the sanme. Every treatnment plant
has a permt, whereas no permt wll be issued for a cruise ship.

Number 2240

SENATOR TAYLOR said he understands the justification for different
standards since sone of the treatnment plants were permtted 15
years ago while newer plants are nore efficient. He thought
Senator Ward's concern was whether there is sone |evel of
uniformty for the state ferries, communities, and cruise ships.

CHAI RMVAN CONDERY comment ed t hat everyone wants clean air and cl ean
water. He asked why a double standard for the smaller cruise ship
vessel s and fishing boats is being considered.

MR. CONWAY answered that this legislation covers vessels wth
overni ght accommodati ons for 50 passengers or nore. Al vessels
fall under the federal l|aw for sewage discharge, which requires
that if a vessel has an installed toilet, it nust have an MSD.

TAPE 01-18, SIDE B
SENATOR ELTON said, in response to coments about the Juneau
i ncident, that the individual who was i nvol ved viol ated the | aw and

that crimnal charges have been filed. He commented that the
Juneau incident gets to the issue of whether different standards

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -13- May 6, 2001



apply.
CHAI RVAN CONDERY asked if this individual was an enpl oyee.
SENATOR ELTON sai d he believes the enpl oyee was a supervi sor.

CHAl RVAN CONDERY asked M. Conway if he has had a chance to read SB
225, whi ch he sponsored.

MR. CONWAY asked if SB 225 changes the title and is applicable to
all rmunicipal treatnent plants.

CHAI RVAN CONDERY sai d yes.

MR. CONWAY said that bill would put all conmunities and m nes out
of busi ness.

CHAI RVAN CONDERY sai d he understands that and asked M. Conway if
he doesn’'t want those entities to conform He said his idea is
that these standards nust apply to everything if we're going to
have clean air and water. He noted people cone to Al aska because
it is clean and we need to keep it that way. He was very di sturbed
by the negative publicity that got out around the world. He
bel i eves these probl ens shoul d be solved here without going to the
press.

MR. CONWAY said one option DEC considered was to put the cruise
ship industry wunder a permt system Ilike every shore side
facility, and have different standards for every vessel. That
woul d be acceptable to DEC but it does not seem feasible.

CHAl RMVAN CONDERY st ated the standard should be clean air and cl ean
wat er . He said to his understandi ng, Juneau has sonme untreated
di schar ge.

SENATOR TAYLOR said it goes through a treatnent plant.

MR. CONWAY said everything is required to go through the treatnent
pl ant .

CHAI RVAN CONDERY said he knows it is required but he was under the
i npression, from Conm ssioner Brown, that she is aware of sone
subdi vi sions that have untreated di scharge.

MR.  CONWAY expl ai ned those subdivisions have permts and are
all owed to di scharge above that standard.

SENATOR WARD asked if because of the old permtting systemwe have
this Adm nistration is allowing pollution to go on.

MR. CONWAY explained there is a permt for those facilities and if

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -14- May 6, 2001



ships were to have a permt DEC would have the same opportunity to
| ook at what is occurring in the discharges.

SENATOR WARD asked if DEC plans to propose anmendnents so that the
commttee can put proper guidelines on this pollution problem so
that there is no doubl e standard.

MR. CONWAY said he is not aware of any effort to do that.

SENATOR WARD suggested that DEC make such an effort so that the
probl em can be resol ved. He does not think the public understands
the entire problem and has only heard about the cruise ships. He
said the cruise ship problemdoesn't begin to conpare to the | arger
pr obl em Senator Ward asked if fast ferries will have to store
wast e.

MR. CONVAY expl ained that the fast ferries will have MSDs so the
waste wll be treated before it goes overboard. He pointed out
this legislation will not apply to fast ferries because they wll
not have overni ght accommodati ons for 50 or nore people.

SENATOR WARD asked if the level of waste froma fast ferry will be
hi gher than that froma cruise ship.

MR. CONVAY said it would be the same fromusing MSDs. The |arge
cruise ship industry is working on inprovenents in technol ogy so

that the water quality of discharge will be of a drinking water
quality. In his opinion, |large cruise ships mght have the ability
to install that kind of equipnment but smaller vessels will not be

able to. DEC has had discussions with the U S. flag industry about
how t hat industry could be accombdated so that the standards are
cl ose to equivalent without putting them out of business.

SENATOR WARD asked who is polluting Al aska waters nore, the vessels
that will fall under this legislation or the vessels that do not.

MR. CONWAY answered the |arge passenger vessels, which are the
focus of this bill, because of the nunber of passengers.

CHAI RMVAN CONDERY asked how many nonths per year those vessels are
in Al aska.

MR CONVAY replied five to six nonths, fromthe first of May to the
end of Septenber.

SENATOR WARD not ed the other ships are here year-round.
MR. CONWAY said the ships that are here during the winter are few
and small so the nunber of passengers brought in by the |arge

cruise ship industry still outnunber the year-round fleet by a
t remendous nunber

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -15- May 6, 2001



CHAI RMAN CONDERY asked about dunping facilities for |ive-aboards.

MR. CONVAY answered two types of MSDs are used. A Type 2 device
treats the sewage. A Type 3 device is a holding tank that is
punped. Al aska has very few reception facilities so nost vessels
have a Type 2 MsSD. The only requirenent is that a vessel have an
MBD, that it be certified by the Coast Guard and that it operate
properly. \What was discovered in this cruise ship initiative is
that no one knew what was com ng out of the NMSDs.

CHAl RMAN CONDERY asked what happens when the Type 3 devices are
full

MR. CONWAY said the vessel is in violation if it punps over the
side unless it is in an area three mles fromshore.

CHAI RMAN CONDERY asked if that is a common viol ation

MR. CONVWAY said DEC responds to conplaints of that nature but he
woul d have to check to see how often that occurs. The nbst conmon
report in a small boat harbor is about an oil sheen.

SENATOR WARD asked if the crux of the problemis that 3,000 or
4,000 people on a cruise ship create a lot of pollution conpared to
a town or ship of 300 or 400.

MR. CONVWAY said the potential is there for the pollution but the
cruise ship industry is in conpliance with treatnent requirenents.

SENATOR WARD asked if the fear is that the nunber of people on
cruise ships is larger than a whole city.

MR. CONWAY said that has been the concern. At any one tinme in
Sout heast Al aska, when the cruise ships are in full scale, there
are 45,000 people on the Inside Passage.

SENATOR WARD comrented that he feels the attack on this industry
was very poorly done if it is not a big violator. He said if this
problemis going to be addressed, all polluters should be addressed
equally. He said we don't have to have any raw sewage bei ng dunped
into our waters anywhere.

SENATOR TAYLOR said it is his understanding that the Juneau
wast ewat er treatnent plant was not operating correctly and rather
than report that to DEC, the Juneau enpl oyee "watered" the report
down.

MR. CONWAY said EPA is handling that violation so he is not

famliar with the details of that case. He thought that is how the
press characterized the incident.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -16- May 6, 2001



SENATOR TAYLOR said it is hard to believe that the enployee
intentionally caused the Juneau plant to discharge higher levels if
t he plant was working properly. He then referred to M. Conway's
statenent that on a busy day, 45,000 passengers travel on the
I nsi de Passage on cruise ships and said according to the census,
75,000 people are discharging into the waters of Southeast year
round.

MR. CONWAY said he was speaking to the additional nunber of people
on the cruise ships.

SENATOR TAYLOR said he is referring to the people with old permts
that are using a sewage treatnent systemthey installed thensel ves,
or perhaps have no treatnent systens at all. In some rural areas,
peopl e have a pipe to -4 foot tide that is for direct discharge.
He repeated that we can't be too hypocritical when it comes to
conpliance and different standards and that the reason for the bill
is so that soneone can gain political headlines and political
thunder fromit. He noted what Senator Ward is asking is what is
the real inpact on the salt water.

CHAI RVAN CONDERY repeated that the conmttee is concerned about the
doubl e standard.

SENATOR ELTON said he disagrees that the notivations behind this
bill are as previously described by Senator Tayl or.

CHAI RVAN COADERY sai d he believes they are because of all of the
"PR' that goes out to the networks. He said this "PR' is not doing
Al aska's fishing industry any good and it is not in Al aska's best
interest. He repeated if Al aska has a problem it should do its
own | aundry here.

SENATOR TAYLOR sai d he doesn't care what the notivation behind this
bill is. He cares about the Pacific Ccean. H's honme is on that
ocean and he does not want that water poll uted. He cannot sit
there and say that water is only being polluted by the ships from
out of town when every one of his neighbors mght be polluting it
worse. He pointed out that he is glad that the sewage system was
extended out to his house and in the 23 years he's lived there he
knows his property has a straight pipe going out to mnus 4 feet,
which was permitted. He said it is not fair of Al askans to do a
wi nk and a nod knowing full well that the Governor's house itself
is hooked up to a systemthat was out of conpliance just this year.
He repeated that he is tired of people being held to different
st andar ds. He added that the fishing and processing fleet that
conmes to Al aska each sumer does not have any treatnent facilities
onboard.

MR. CONVWAY said Senator Taylor has addressed the whol e spectrum

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -17- May 6, 2001



He noted that in Al aska, a nunber of people and conmunities have
wai vers from the federal government for the secondary treatnent
requi renent because the communities just cannot afford a $20
mllion treatnent plant for 500 people. The comunities with the
capability have secondary treatnent plants. Anchorage has a
wai ver .

CHAI RVAN CONDERY said that doesn't mean it is right.

MR CONVWAY expl ai ned the next |level is sewage treatnent for housing
areas. Cccupants of a multiple dwelling have to go through a plan
review and get a permt. The third level is for individual hones
with septic tank systens. DEC had a programto do plan approvals
for those systens but it has not been funded for five or ten years.
He pointed out that DEC devotes its resources to those that have
the potential to do nore harm

SENATOR TAYLOR said he appl auds the job DEC does as it is thankless
work with a lot of critics. He commended the DEC Village Safe
Wat er Program

CHAI RVAN CONDERY sai d he tal ked to Conm ssi oner Brown who said that
fines and penalties are being considered for the Juneau wast ewat er
pl ant .

MR. CONWAY repeated that is an EPA enforcenent action so he is not
aware of what EPA will do.

CHAl RMAN COWDERY asked about the wastewater not related to
treatment plants.

MR. CONWAY replied the Bonnie Brae subdivision is wunder a
conpliance agreenent. The first step, when a violation is
detected, is to negotiate. In this case, the comunity has put
forward the funds to hook that subdivision into the treatnent
plant. DEC gives those entities a period of time to get that |ine
out there. I ndi vidually, as DEC gets notices of violations, it
sits dowmm with the owner to figure out what the owner can do.
Fi nes and penalties are assessed when working with the owner hasn't
been successful.

CHAI RVAN CONDERY t hanked M. Conway and took further testinony.

MR RANDY RAY, President of the U S Cuiseship Association (USCA)

said his organization represents the US. flag small ship
operators. The USCA endorses HB 260 with sone anendnents he woul d
like the conmttee to consider. USCA's vessels primarily carry 36
to 138 passengers; one of its nenbers is currently building a
vessel that will carry 249 passengers and will come to Alaska in
t he 2002 season. USCA vessels are very different operationally and
technologically fromthe | arge cruise ship vessels. USCA vessels

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 18- May 6, 2001



di scharge about 4,000 gallons of graywater and bl ack water per day
while the large vessels discharge about 250,000 gallons of
graywat er and bl ackwater per day. Al USCA vessels have MSDs t hat
have been certified by the Coast Guard, but that technology is
about 10 to 20 years old. To get certification, 40 sanples are
taken over 4 days. Two sanples are thrown out and the renai nder
are averaged to cone up with a nunber of 200 fecal coliform
bacteria colonies per 100 mlliliters, which is the standard in SCS
CSHB 260(TRA). Not every sanple from the MsSDs used by the USCA
vessels neets the 200 standard but the |egislation requires that
standard be net on every test.

MR RAY said he visited a Seatrade conference in Mam a few nonths
ago, the |argest conference on cruise ships in the world. New MSDs
are being built that will treat graywater and bl ackwater to al nost
drinki ng water standards. The manufacturers are building those
MSDs for |arge ships only, as the equipnent is designed for ships
with a |arge anobunt of space bel ow deck. USCA ships are nuch
smal | er and do not have the extra space below. The USCA asked the
manuf acturers to design them for smaller ships but the
manuf acturers are not currently putting any research and
devel opment funds in to shrink the size. In addition, these
devi ces are designed to use freshwater, while USCA vessel s use salt
water in their MsSDs. One USCA vessel |ooked at adding a 500 gallon
tank for a sprinkler systemfor fire safety. That would require
cutting the ship in half and adding 20 feet to the vessel.

MR. RAY said the USCA is facing a proposed law that requires it to
neet effluent standards every tinme but the USCA does not expect to
have now or in the near future the technology to enable it to neet
t hat standard. This does not nmean the USCA is doing nothing

Since last sunmer, the USCA discovered that its discharge results
were just as bad as every other type of cruiseship in Alaska so it
has been working quickly to train its nenbers to nake things work

M. Ray said the House recognized this dilemm and put a del ayed
inplementation in the legislation for USCA-si ze vessels. The USCA
proposed a nore detail ed anendnment but the House ran out of tine.
Since then, the USCA has been working with all parties, including
the Adm nistration, to come up with technical |anguage to fix the
problem The problemw th the del ayed i nplenentation is that when
t he date passes, and USCA vessels will no |onger be exenpted, the
USCA will be required to follow requirenents that work for |arge
vessel s but not small vessels. For exanple, ships must discharge
at least one mle fromport and while underway. USCA vessels have
found that by running their MSDs 24 hours per day, they have a
better chance of neeting the standards. If those MSDs must be shut
down while in port and started up when one mle from port, the
di scharge will probably violate the standard. Second, many USCA
ships do not store graywater. The USCA has recently |earned of
small units that can be attached to the end of the pipe to treat
the discharge at a low flow rate. To not be able to discharge in

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -19- May 6, 2001



port will throw 80 percent of the American fleet out of Al aska.

MR. RAY said the proposed anendnents have been agreed to by the
Adm nistration. He noted the amendnents require nost provisions to
apply to USCA vessels so that they nust register and nonitor and

anal yze their discharge. However, the anendnents delay the
standards because the USCA cannot neet them right now The
amendnents also recognize the difference in the discharge
procedures of snmall and |arge ships. He asked that the Senate

continue to perfect the legislation before final passage.

SENATOR ELTON noted page 4, line 7, of SCS CSHB 160( TRA) contains
| anguage that reads, "The departnment may establish alternative
terms and conditions of permtting discharges applicable to an
owner or operators of a vessel who cannot practicably conply with
the standard terns and conditions of permtting discharges under

(b) ...."

MR. RAY said that section allows for sone permssibility but it
al so says snaller ships have to neet another standard. Because of
that, he has had | engthy di scussions with the Adm nistration.

CHAl RVAN COWDERY infornmed the commttee that he received 12
proposed anendnents late last night and that those anendnents
contain sone conflicting provisions. He stated it is his intention
to hold this bill and to work with the Adm nistration and the USCA
to get sone acceptabl e solutions.

SENATOR W LKEN asked M. Ray if 80 percent of the ships on the |ist
he provided would not cone to Alaska if the bill passes and, if so,
to name a few of those ships.

MR. RAY said the Sea Lion and Sea Bird are two vessels that do not
have hol ding tanks for their graywater. He repeated that they may
be able to put sone equi pnent on the end of their pipes.

SENATOR W LKEN asked if the six Cruise Wst ships could not cone to
Al aska.

MR. RAY said sone could but sonme could not. The |arger vessels
have nore ability for storage than the snaller vessels.

SENATOR W LKEN asked if M. Ray was saying 80 percent of all USCA
vessel s could not cone, rather than 80 percent of the vessels naned
on the list.

MR. RAY said it would probably apply to 80 percent of the ships on
the list.

SENATOR TAYLOR comment ed t hat the Sout heast Al aska econony has been
devastated by the |l oss of the tinber industry and residents were

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 20- May 6, 2001



told that the tourist industry is something they could work wth.
The tourist industry is concentrating on three or four towns:
Sitka, Juneau, Ketchikan and Skagway. The comunities of
Pet ersburg and Wangell have seen a drop in the nunber of |arge
ships that visit. The snmall day boats are the only ships that
visit those two communities with any frequency. Senat or Tayl or
said if 80 percent of those vessels are lost, "the last guy |eaving
town in Wangell better turn off the Ilights.” He expressed
frustration that this bill will regulate the small vessels out of
Al aska while the small towns can run with no treatnment at all.

CHAI RVAN CONDERY asked M. Conway to provide commttee nenbers with
a list of the exenpted and permtted communities with the dates of
the exenption or permt.

SENATOR WARD asked M. Conway to al so provide the commttee with a
list of the anended wai vers over the past 15 years.

MR. CONWAY agreed to do so.
There being no further testinony or business to conme before the

comm ttee, CHAI RVAN CONDERY adj ourned the neeting at 10:42 a.m
#

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -21- May 6, 2001



